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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Board of Commissioners 
City of Mt. Juliet, Tennessee 
Mt. Juliet, Tennessee 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business - type activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Mt. Juliet, Tennessee (the City), as of and for the year ended June 30,2012, which collectively 
comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the Table of Contents. These financial statements are the responsibilityofthe City of Mt. 
Juliet's managenient. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Goverrln~e~lt Alcditirzg Starldards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing 
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the 
governmental activities , the business - type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Mt. Juliet, 
Tennessee at June 30, 2012, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows where applicable and the respective budgetary 
comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

In accordance with Goverrln~ent Azrditirlg Sta~tdards, we have also issued our report dated November 14,2012, on our consideration ofthe City of 
Mt. Juliet's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its colnpliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That 
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Gover~~~ner~t  Azrditi~lg Standards and should be considered in assessing the results 
of our audit. 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis on pages ii through 
ix be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries ofmanagement 
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the 
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide 
any assurance. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the City of Mt. Juliet's basic 
financial statements. The Combining and Individual Nonmajor Fund Statements and Schedules are presented for the purpose of additional analysis 
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The Combining and Individual Nonmajor Fund Statements and Schedules are the 
responsibility of managenient and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial 
statements as a whole. 

November 14,2012 



Management's Discussion and Analysis 

As management of the City of Mt. Juliet, Tennessee (the City), we offer readers of the 
City's financial statements this nai-rative overview and analysis of the financial activities 
of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30,2012. The analysis will focus on significant 
financial position, budget changes, and variances from the budget, and specific issues 
related to funds and the economic factors affecting the City. We encourage readers to 
read the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that is 
furnished in the City's financial statements, which follow this nai-rative. 

Financial Highlights 

e The assets of the City of Mt. Juliet, TN exceeded its liabilities at the close of the 
fiscal year by $84.4 million. 

e The goveiment's total net assets increased by $8.3 million, primarily due to 
increases in the governmental type activities net assets. 
As of the close of the current fiscal yeas, the City of Mt. Juliet's governmental 
funds repoited combined ending fund balances of over $16.6 million an increase 
of almost $3.9 million in comparison with the prior year. Approximately 37 
percent of this total amount, or $6.2 million, is available for spending at the 
goveiment's discretion and is considered unassigned fund balance. 

a At the end of the cusrent fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General 
Fund was $6.2 million, or 5 1.5 percent of total general fund expenditures for the 
fiscal year. 
The City of Mt. Juliet's total debt increased by $464 Thousand (2.8%) during the 
cul-rent fiscal year. The ltey factor in this increase was the issuance of $1.1 
million in capital notes to fund the public safety P-25 communication upgrade 
which was offset in part by principal payments as scheduled. 
The City of Mt. Juliet has maintained its AA rating by Standard and Poor's and 
has been classified as stable since 612012009. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to City of Mt. 
Juliet's basic financial statements. The City's basic financial statements consist of three 
components; 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 
3) notes to the financial statements (see Figure 1). The basic financial statements present 
two different views of the City through the use of govesnrnent-wide statements and fund 
financial statements. In addition to the basic financial statements, this repoit contains 
other information that will enhance the reader's understanding of the financial condition 
of the City of Mt. Juliet. 
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Required Components of Annual Pinancia1 Report 

Figure 1 

Su~nrnary . Detail 

Management's 

Discussion and 

Analysis 

Basic Financial Statements 

Basic 

Financial 

Statements 

The first two statements, pages 1 and 2, in the basic financial statements are the 
Government-wide Financial Statements. They provide both sho1-t and long-term 
information about the City's financial status. 

The next statements, pages 3 through 13, are Fund Financial Statements. These 
statements focus on the activities of the individual pai-ts of the City's government. These 
statements provide more detail' than the govei-nment-wide statements. There are t h e e  
pai-ts to the Fund Financial Statements: 1) the gove~mental funds statements; 2) the 
budgetary comparison statements; and 3) the proprietary fund statements. 

Government-wide 

The next section of the basic financial statements is the notes. The notes to the financial 
statements explain in detail some of the data contained in those statements. These notes 
are disclosed on pages 14-29. After the notes, additional information is provided to show 
details about the City's individual funds. Budgetary information required by the General 

Financial Financial Financial 

Statements Statements Statements 

Fund Notes to the 
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Statutes also can be found in this pai-t of the statements. There are additional financial 
schedules and other required reports. 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

The goveiment-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a 
broad overview of the City's finances, similar in format to a financial statement of a 
private-sector business. The govermnent-wide statements provide shoi-t and long-term 
information about the City's financial status as a whole. Over time, increases or decreases 
in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City 
is improving or deteriorating. 

The two goveimnent-wide statements repoi-t the City's net assets and how they have 
changed. Net assets are the difference between the City's total assets and total liabilities. 
Measuring net assets is one way to gauge the City's financial condition. 

The government-wide statements are divided into t hee  categories: 1) governmental 
activities; 2) business-type activities; and 3) component units. The goveimnental 
activities include most of the City's basic services such as public safety, parlts and 
recreation, and general administration. Propei-ty taxes and state and federal grant funds 
finance most of these activities. The business-type activities are those that the City 
charges customers to provide. Sewer is the only service offered by the City of Mt. Juliet. 
The City of Mt. Juliet has no component units. 

The government-wide financial statements are on pages 1 and 2 of this repoi-t. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements (see Figure 1) provide a more detailed look at the City's 
most significant activities. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to 
maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or 
objectives. The City of Mt. Juliet, TN, lilte all other governmental entities in Tennessee, 
uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect compliance (or non-compliance) with finance- 
related legal requirements, such as the General Statutes or the City's budget ordinance. 
All of the funds of City of Mt. Juliet can be divided into two categories: governmental 
funds and proprietary funds. 

Goveimental Funds - Governmental funds are used to account for those functions 
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Most of 
the City's basic services are accounted for in governmental funds. These funds focus on 
how assets can readily be convei-ted into cash flow in and out, and what monies are left at 
year-end that will be available for spending in the next year. Governmental funds are 
reported using an accounting method called nzodzjied accrual accozrnting that provides a 
short-term spending focus. As a result, the governmental fund financial statements give 
the reader a detailed short-term view that helps him or her determine if there are more or 
less financial resources available to finance the City's programs. The relationship 
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between government activities (repoi-ted in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement 
of Activities) and governmental funds is described in a reconciliation that is a past of the 
fund financial statements. 

The City of Mt. Juliet adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required by the 
General Statutes. The budget is a legally adopted document that incol-porates input from 
the citizens of the City the management of the City and the decisions of the Board about 
which services to provide and how to pay for them. It also authorizes the City to obtain 
funds from identified sources to finance these current period activities. The budgetary 
statement provided for the General Fund demonstrates how well the City complied with 
the budget ordinance and whether or not the City succeeded in providing the services as 

.planned when the budget was adopted. The budgetary comparison statement uses the 
budgetary basis of accounting and is presented using the same format, language, and 
classifications as the legal budget document. The statement shows four columns: 1) the 
original budget as adopted by the Board of Commissioners; 2) the final budget as 
amended by the Board of Commissioners; 3) the actual resources, charges to 
appropriations, and ending balances in the General Fund; and 4) the difference or 
variance between the final budget and the actual resources and charges. To account for 
the difference between the budgetary basis of accounting and the modified accrual basis, 
a reconciliation showing the differences in the repoi-ted activities is shown at the end of 
the budgetary statement. 

Proprietary Funds - City of Mt. Juliet has two different ltinds of proprietary funds. 
Enteyrise Fzinds are used to repoi-t the same functions presented as business-type 
activities in the govesnment-wide financial statements. City of Mt. Juliet uses an 
enterprise fund to account for its sewer activity. This fund is the same as those functions 
shown in the business-type activities in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of 
Activities. 

Internul Service Fz~nds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs 
intel-nally among the functions of the City of Mt. Juliet. The City uses an internal service 
fund to account for one activity - its Employee Benefit activity. Because this operation 
benefits predominantly governmental rather than business-type activities, the internal 
service fund assets and liabilities have been included within the governmental activities 
in the government-wide financial statements with a due to and due from to allocate the 
proper portion to business type activities. 

Notes to the Financial Statements - The notes provide additional information that is 
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund 
financial statements. The notes to the financial statements are on pages 14-29 of this 
report. 

Other Information - In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying 
notes, this repoi-t includes certain required supplementary infoimation concerning the 
City of Mt. Juliet's progress in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its 
employees. Required supplementary information can be found on pages 24 and 26. 
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Government-Wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as one useful indicator of a government's 
financial condition. The assets of the City of Mt. Juliet exceeded liabilities by $84.4 
million as of June 30,2012. The City's net assets increased by $8.3 million for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2012. However, the largest poi-tion, 79.6%, reflects the City's 
investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any 
related debt still outstanding that was issued to acquire those items. The City of Mt. 
Juliet uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets 
are not available for future spending. Although the City of Mt. Juliet's investment in its 
capital assets is reported net of the outstanding related debt, the resources needed to repay 
that debt must be provided by other sources, since the capital assets cannot be used to 
liquidate these liabilities. An additional poi-tion of the City of Mt. Juliet's net assets 8.1% 
represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. 
The remaining balance of $10.4 million is unsestricted. 

City of Mt .  Juliet Net Assets 

Governmental Business Type 

Activities Activities Total Total 

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 

Current and Other Assets 20,000,397 15,725,997 6,473,223 5,430,455 26,473,620 21,156.452 

Capital Assets 39,186,349 35,508,952 40,519,457 40,519,457 79,705,806 76,028.409 

Total Assets 59,186,746 51,234,949 46,992,680 45,949,912 106,179,426 97,184.861 

Long Term Liabilities Outstanding 17,551,184 16,774,195 272,284 413,495 17,823,468 17,187,690 

Other Liabilities 3,338,308 3,152,134 573,067 704,726 3,911,375 3,856,860 

Total Liabilities 20,889,492 19,926,329 845,351 1,118,221 21,734,843 21,044,550 

Net Assets: 

Invested in Capital Assets, 

Net of Related Debt 27,112,895 23,605,768 40,093,098 40,149,457 67,205,993 63,755,225 

Restricted 3,490,144 4,056,948 3,389,587 6,879,731 4,056,948 

Unrestricted 7,694,215 3,645,904 2,664,644 4,682,234 10,358,859 8,328,138 

Total Net Assets 38,297,254 31,308,620 46,147,329 44,831,691 84,444,583 76,140,311 

Several particular aspects of the City's financial operations positively influenced the total 
unrestricted governmental net assets: 

a Local sales tax collection increased despite the economic woes of the rest of the 
country due to incoming retail locations and maturity of others. 

0 Continued low cost of debt due to the City's high bond rating. 



City of Mt. Juliet 

Revenues 
Program Revenues: 

Charges for Services 
Operating Grants and Contributions 
Capital Grants and Contributions 

General Revenues 
Sales Taxes 
PropeFty Tax 
Other Locally Assessed Taxes 
Other State Shared Taxes 
Investment Earnings R: Rental Income 
Other 

Total Revenues 

Expenses: 
General Government 
Public Safety 
Recreation and Culture 
Streets and Public Works 
Stonwater 
Interest on Debt 
Sewer 

Total Expenses 
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets 
Net Assets Beginning of Year 
Net Assets End of Year 

City of Mt. Juliet Cl~anses  in Net Assets 
Governmental Business Type 

Activities Activities Total Total 
2012 201 1 2012 201 1 2012 201 1 

Governmental Activities: Governmental activities increased the City's net assets by 
almost $7.0 million, thereby accounting for 84.2% of the total growth in the net assets of 
the City of Mt. Juliet. Key elements of this increase are as follows: 

e General tax revenues increased. 
e Property tax was instituted. 
e City codes require developers to build to a certain standard in streets for which the 

City then assumes responsibility and receives donated infiastructure. 
e Developers also provided over $337 thousand in road improvement fees. 

Business-type activities: Business-type activities increased the City of Mt. Juliet's net 
assets by $1 :3 million, accounting for 15.8% of the total growth in the government's net 
assets. Key elements of this increase are as follows: 

City codes require developers to build to a certain standard for sewers for which 
the City assumes responsibility and receives donated infrastructure. 
Development continues to increase the business-type assets with sewer tap fee 
requirements. 

Financial Analysis of the City of Mt. Juliet Funds 

As noted earlier, the City of Mt. Juliet uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate 
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. 

vii 
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Governmental Funds: The focus of the City of Mt. Juliet's governmental funds is to 
provide information on near-teim inflows, outflows, and balances of usable resources. 
Such information is useful in assessing the City of Mt. Juliet's financing requirements. 
Specifically, unreserved fund balance can be a useful measure of a government's net 
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Mt. Juliet. At the end of the 
cui-rent fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $6.2 million, while 
total fund balance reached $7.5 million. As a measure of the general fund's liquidity, it 
may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total 
fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 51.5% of total General Fund 
expenditures while total fund balance represents 62.3% of the same expenditures.. 

At June 30,2012, the governmental funds of City of Mt. Juliet reported a combined fund 
balance of over $16.6 million, a 30.5 percent increase over last year. Included in this 
change are fund balance increases in the General, Capital Projects, Drug, and Emergency 
Services Funds and decreases in the State Street Aid Debt Service, and Stoim Water 
Funds. The city instituted a property tax for the first time in over 10 years dedicated to 
the Emergency Services Fund that raised almost $1.3 million that is being held for the 
purchase of capital resources for the Fire Depaitment. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights: During the fiscal year, the City revised the 
budget on several occasions. Generally, budget amendments fall into one of three 
categories: 1) amendments made to adjust the estimates that are used to prepare the 
original budget ordinance once exact information is available; 2) amendments made to 
recognize new funding amounts from external sources, such as Federal and State grants; 
and 3) increases in appropriations that become necessary to maintain services. 

The city instituted a local property tax raising $1.3 million. Local tax revenues were 4.7 
percent or over $389 thousand above the budget of revenue in the largest City revenue 
category. Revenue in most areas exceeded budget with relative minor exceptions. The 
other largest increases were the result of road improvement fees, contributions from 
others and various permit fees. License and Permit fees were 54% above budget as a 
result of the city assuming responsibility for certain electrical inspections and an 
unanticipated surge in building permits. 

The City Manager and Depaitment Heads made every effoil; to hold expenditures well 
within budgets in order to increase the General Fund Balance in anticipation of the City's 
assumption of fire protection responsibility. Some repairs and improvements to 
infrastructure items have been defei-sed in further effoit to increase the General Fund 
balance. 

Proprietary Funds: The City's proprietary hnds provide the same type of information 
found in the govesnment-wide statements but in more detail. Umestricted net assets of 
the Sewer Fund at the end of the fiscal year amounted to over $2.7 million. The total 
growth in net assets for the fund was over $1.3 million. 
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Developers built sewer lines to the required City standard which were then 
contributed to the City in the amount of $567 thousand. The City assumed 
responsibility for maintenance, repair and eventual replacement of these assets. 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital assets. The City of Mt. Juliet's investment in capital assets for its governmental 
and business-type activities as of June 30, 2012, totals over $79.4 million (net of 
accumulated depreciation). These assets include buildings, roads and bridges, land, 
machinery and equipment, park facilities, and vehicles. 

Major capital asset transactions during the year include the following additions: 
e Improvements and completion of Public Works Industrial Drive Buildings $60 

Thousand. 
Playground and exercise equipment at Charlie Daniels $154 thousand. 
Streets donated by developers $3.8 million. 

e Police vehicles and equipment $157 thousand. 
Park vehicles $47 thousand. 

e Public Works vehicles and equipment $58 thousand. 
IT and General equipment $58 thousand. 

e Construction in progress-Communication P-25 Upgrade $334 thousand. 
Construction in process-Greenways $64 thousand 

e Sewer Collection System $723 thousand 
Sewer Equipment $207 thousand 

e No major disposals were recorded this year. 

City of Mt. Juliet Capital Assets 
City of hlt. J~lliet's Cnpitnl Assets 

Governn~estnl Business Type 
Activities Activities Total Total 

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 

Land 
Bldgs nnd Irnproven~ents 
Irnprov Otller then Bldgs 
RIncl~inery and Equipment 
Construction in Progress 
Collection System 
Inrrastr~~ct~~re  
Total Cost 
Less AccDcpr 
Net Cnpitnl Assets 

Additional information on the City capital assets can be found in note 3 on page 19 of the 
Basic Financial Statements. 

Long-term Debt: As of June 30, 2012, the City of Mt. Juliet had total bonded debt, 
lease-purchases and capital notes outstanding of almost $17.0 million. Of this, $16.8 
million is debt backed by the full faith and credit of the City of Mt. Juliet. The remainder 
of the City's debt represents bonds secured solely by sewer billing revenue. 
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City offilt. Juliet's Outstanding Debt 
General Obligation and RevenueBonds 

Governmental Business Type 
Activities Activities Total 

2012 201 1 2012 201 1 2012 201 1 

General Obligation Bonds 16,795,000 16,150,000 16,795,000 16,150,000 

Revenue Bonds 189,000 370,000 189,000 370,000 

Total 16,795,000 16,150,000 189,000 370,000 16,984,000 16,520,000 

Impact Fee revenue is allocated to the Debt Service Fund in order to liquidate the City's 
bonds that were issued to suppoi-t the City road building projects. Such revenue must be 
supplemented with transfers from the General Fund in order for the fund to meet the 
outstanding obligations. The City of Mt. Juliet's total debt increased by $464 thousand or 
2.8% during the past fiscal year, primarily due to principal payments that were liquidated 
when due during the year ended 613012012 offset by the $1.1 million in capital notes 
issued to pay for the P-25 communications upgrade. 

As mentioned in the financial highlights section of this document, the City of Mt. Juliet 
has maintained an AA rating from Standard and Poor's Corporation since June 2009. 
This bond rating is a clear indication of the sound financial condition of City of Mt. 
Juliet. 

The City of Mt. Juliet's debt policy seelts to limits governmental total outstanding debt 
obligations to five percent (5%) of assessments, or $1400 per capita whichever is lower. 
At 613012012 governmental debt was less than 2.5% of assessments and less than $700 
per capita. 

During the past fiscal year, the City did not issue any bonds or engage in any 
LeaselPurchase transactions. However the city did issue $1.1 million in capital notes in 
order to fund the Public Safety P-25 comnunication upgrade. 

Total debt payments for the next fiscal year are less than $1.512 million. Additional 
information regarding the City of Mt. Juliet's long-teim debt can be found in note 5 
beginning on page 21 of this repoit. 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates 

The following ltey economic indicators reflect the growth and prosperity of the City. 

0 The City's unemployment rate in July 2012 estimated at 7.0% is below the 
National average of 8.3% as well as the Tennessee rate of 8.4%. 
Occupancy rates on office and retail space. The City's occupancy rates are over 
90% for the year and most retail space being created is presold. 

0 The City brought three auto collision repair facilities to the city as of 613012012. 
0 Another "Big Box" retailer is expected to open before the Christmas 2012 season. 
0 Three upscale restaurants are scheduled to open during 2013. 

There are plans for 600 new apartment units in the Providence area. 
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An additional retail area is under possible development within the next thee  
years, pending certain infrastructure services being offered by the city. 
A national insurance agency opened a regional office within the City at 61301201 2 

Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30,2012 

Governmental Activities: Property taxes were implemented for the first time since 1999 
and raised almost $1.275 million. The City will use this revenue to finance capital 
resource purchases for emergency services for fire protection. The City anticipates 
nominal growth in local tax revenue, licenses and permits as well as a loss in revenue of 
some $200 thousand from changes in red light camera laws. 

Increases in the General Fund are anticipated and the largest incre~nents are in employee 
compensation, including funding compensation and benefits adjustments. However, 
budgeted revenue is expected to exceed budgeted expenditures for 613012013 by $244 
thousand and therefore no provision in the 613012012 unassigned fund balance will be 
necessary. 

Business - type Activities: The sewer rates in the City are not projected to increase 
during the fiscal year ended 61301201 3. Nominal revenue growth will be funded by new 
customers. Purification costs of wastewater call be expected to rise 4% in accordance 
with the Metro contract. ~ersonnel costs can be expected to rise 1.5%. General operating 
expenses will increase by 2.0% to cover increased costs of material, supplies, and other 
operating expenses. With depreciation the Sewer Fund revenue will fail to cover 100% of 
the cost of operations. 

Requests for Information 

This report is designed to provide an overview of the City of Mt. Juliet's finances for 
those with an interest in this area. Questions concerning any of the information found in 
this report or requests for additional information should be directed to the Finance 
Director, John Rossmaier, PO Box 679, Mt. Juliet, YN 37121-0679 or einail at 
jrossmaier@cityofmtuliet. org 

Additional budget information is published on the City of Mt. Juliet's website under City 
Documents, Online Documelits, Finance, and City Budget. 
http://www.cit~ofmt~~uliet.orgl 



CITY OF MT. JULIET, TENNESSEE 

Statement of Net Assets 

June 30,2012 

Priinaly Government 
Governmental Business-type 

Activities Activities 

$1 1,270,244 1,559,269 
1,020,333 

Total 
Priinaiy 

Govewinent 

12,829,5 13 
1,020,333 

Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Receivables (net): 

Property taxes 
Other taxes 
Due froin other governments 
Internal balances 
Grant receivable 
Interest receivable 
Customers 

Inventories 
Restricted assets: 

Cash - construction 
Cash - bond proceeds 

Prepaid expenses 
Bond issue costs, net 
Capital assets, net of accu~nulated depreciation 
Land and constrution in progress - nondepreciable 

Total Assets 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Accrued interest 
Contracts payable 
Deferred revenue 
Long-term liabilities due within one year 
Long-term liabilities due in inore than one year 

Total Liabilities 
Net Assets 

Investment in capital assets, net of related debt 
Restricted for: 

Capital irnproveinents 
Debt service 
Streets 
Public safety 
Stormwater 
Parks 

Unrestricted 

Total Net Assets 

See accoinpanying notes to financial statements. 



CITY OF MT. JULIET, TENNESSEE 
Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended June 30,2012 

Net (Expenses) Revenue and 
Program Revenues 

Operating Capital 
Charges for Grants and Grants and 

Expenses Services Contributions Contributions 

Changes in Net Assets 
Primary Government 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

Functions 1 Programs: 
Primary Government: 
Governmental Activities: 
General government 
Public safety 
Recreation and Culture 
Streets and public works 
Stormwater 
Interest on debt 

Total Government Activities 
Business-type Activities: 
Sewer 

Total Business-type Activities 

Total Primary Government 

General Revenues: 
Property taxes 
Sales taxes 
Wholesale beer tax 
Franchise tax 
HoteUmotel tax 
Business tax 
State shared sales tax 
State shared beer tax 
State shared income tax 
State shared TVA tax 
Unrestricted other state shared taxes 
Unrestricted investment earnings and rental income 
Gain on sale of capital assets 
Other 

Total general revenues 
Change in net assets 

Net assets - beginning of year 

Net assets - end of year 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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CITY OF MT. JULIET, TENNESSEE 

Balance Sheet 
Governmental Funds 

June 30,2012 

Capital Projects Funds 
General Emerge~ieyf Debt Other Total 

Governmental 
Funds 

- .  
General Capital Projects Community Services Sew ice Governmental 

Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds - -- -- -. .. . . - -- . - - - 

Cash 
Cash - restricted - bond proceeds 
Receivables (net) 

Property taxes 
Other taxes 
Due from other governments 
Due from other funds 
Grant receivable 
Interest recevable 

Prepaid items 

Total Assets 

Liabilities and Fund Balances 
Accounts payable 
Accrued costs 
Contracts payable 
Due to other funds 
Deferred revenue 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Balance: 
Nonspendable: 

Prepaids 
Restricted for: 

Streets 
Parks 
Public safety 
Stormwater 
Streets - capital projects 
Debt service 

Assigned for: 
Public safety - capital projects 

Unassigned: 

Total Fund Balances 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 

See acco~npanying notes to financial statements 
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CITY OF MT. JULIET, TENNESSEE 

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statenlent of Net Assets 
of Governmental Activities 

June 30,2012 

Amounts reported for fund balance - total governmental funds 

A~nounts reported for governmental activities in tlie statement of net 
assets are different because: 

Capital assets, net of accunlulated depreciation, used in 
gover~~mental activities are not financial resources and , 
therefore, are not reported in the funds 

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period 
expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds 

State shared revenue and local option sales tax receivable 
Property taxes receivable 

Inter~lal service fund is used by management to charge the costs of medical 
itlsura~lce to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal 
service fund are included in gover~ltnental activities in the statement of net 
assets. 

I11 the statement of activities, interest is accrued 011 outstanding 
bonds, whereas in goverrtmental funds, interest expenditures are 
reported when due. 

Bond issue costs are amortized over the life of the notes in the statement 
of activities. 

Bond discounts costs are amortized over the life of the notes in the statelllent 
of activities. 

Gain or loss on refunding is amortized as a compone~lt of interest over the 
life of the bonds on the statement of net assets 

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable are not due and payable 
in the current period and therefore are not recorded in the funds. 

Goyern~ne~ltal bonds and notes payable 
Other post employ~l~ent benefits 
Compensated absences 

Net assets of governmental activities 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 



CITY OF MT. JULIET, TENNESSEE 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
Governmental Funds 

For the Year Ended June 30,2012 

Capital Projects Funds 
General Emergency1 

Caoital Proiects CommuniN Services 
Debt 

Service 
Fund 

Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

Total 
Governmental 

Revenues General 
Taxes $8,651,920 
Intergovernmental 2,181,908 
Fines and fees 1,248,042 
Licenses and permits 950,398 
Charges for services 5 14,793 
Uses of money and property 168,728 
Miscellaneous 199,871 

Total Revenue 13,915,660 

Funds 
9,926,548 

Expenditures 
Current: 

General government 
Police 
Fire 
Streets and public works 
Stor~nwater 
Parks and culture 

Debt service 
Capital outlay 

Total Expenditures 
Excess (deficiency) revenues 

over expenditures 3,609,163 

Other Financing Sources [Uses) -- 
Capital note proceeds 
Transfers from (to) other funds (1,732,169) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (1,732,169) 

Net Change in Fund Balance 1,876,994 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 5,622,349 

Fund Bala~ice, End of Year $7,499,343 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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CITY O F  MT. JULIET, TENNESSEE 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
of Governn~eotal Funds to the Statement of Activities 

For tlie Year Ended June 30,2012 

Amounts reported for net change in fund balance - total governmental funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are  different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, 
in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over 
their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense 
in the current period: 

Cost of assets acquired 
Depreciation expense 

Revenues in the statement of activities that do uot provide current 
financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds: 

Property taxes 
Local option sales tax 
State shared revenues 
Contributed capital assets 

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to 
govertirnental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term 
debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. 
Neither transaction, however, has any efect on net assets. Also, 
governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, discounts, 
prerniums and si~niliar items when the debt is first issued, whereas these 
amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. 

Debt repayment 
Debt issua~ice 

A~nortization of debt related costs 
Amortization of debt discounts, premiums and losses on refunding 

Interest is accrued on the outstanding bonds in the govern~nental activities, 
whereas in the governmental funds, an interest expenditure is reported 
when due: 

Change in accrued interest on bonded debt 

Expenses reported for governmental activities do not require the use of 
current financial resources and are not reported as expenditures in the 
govertirnental funds: 

Co~npensated absences 
Other post e~nployment benefits 

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of medical 
medical insurance to individual funds. The net revenue (expenses) of 
certain activities of internal service funds is reported with governmental 
activities. (net of amount allocated to business activities) 

Change in net assets of govern~nental activities 

See acco~npanying notes to financial statements. 
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CITY OF RIT. JULIET, TENNESSEE 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 

General Fund 

For the Year Ended June 30,2012 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final 

Actual 
Amounts Revenues 

Local Taxes: 
Local sales taxes 
Wholesale beer 
Franchise taxes 
Hotel/Motl taxes 
Business taxes 

Total Local Taxes 
Intergovernmental: 

State sales tax 
State beer tax 
State income tax 
Statelcity streets & transp. 
Other state revenue allocation 
TVA tax 
Grants 

Fines and Penalties: 
City court and drug control 

Total Fines and Penalties 
Licenses and Permits: 

Building permits 
Plumbing pennits 
Review and inspection fees 
Zoning pennits 
Sign permits 
Electrical pennits 
Other permits 

Total Licenses & Permits 
Charges for Services: 

Public safety charges 
Road improve~nent fees 
Recreational fees 

Total Charges for Services 
Uses of Property and Money 

Administrative support services 
Rent 
Interest 

Total Uses of Property and money 
Other Revenues: 

Contributions from others 
Sale of assets 
Miscellaneous 

Total Other Revenues 

Total Revenues 

Continuedon next page 



CITY OF MT. JULIET, TENNESSEE 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 

General Fund, Continued 

For the Year Ended June 30,2012 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Actual Positive 
Amounts (Negative) 

Expenditures 
General Goveniment: 

Legilative Board: 
Salaries 
Employee benefits 
Supplies and other 

Total Legislative Board 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final 

City Court: 
Salaries 
Employee benefits 
Outside services 
Supplies 

Total City Court 

City Manager: 
Salaries 
Enlployee benefits 
Outside services 
Membership and dues 
~ u p ~ ~ i e s  
Insuratice 
Other costs 
Retiree benefits 
Capital outlay . 

Total City Manager 

Finance: 
Salaries 
Employee benefits 
Outside services 
Supplies 
Other costs 
Capital outlay 

Total Finance 

City Attorney: 
Salaries 
E~nployee benefits 
Outside services 
Other costs 

Total City Attorney 

Ecolnonic and Co~iltnunity Development: 
Salaries 
Employee benefits 
Outside services 
Other costs 
Housing grant expenditures 
Capital outlay 

Total Economic and Com~nu~iity Develop~nent 

Continued on next page 



CITY OF MT. JULIET, TENNESSEE 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 

General Fund, Continued 

Expenditures 
General Government. continued: 

Planning and Codes: 
Salaries 
Employee benefits 
Supplies 
Outside services 
Other costs 
Capital outlay 

Total Planning and Codes 

City Hall Buildings and IT Services: 
Salaries 
Employee benefits 
Supplies 
Repairs and n~aintenance 
Outside services 
Utilities 
Insurance 
Equipment rental 
Other costs 
Capital outlay 

Total City Hall Buildings 

City Garage: 
Salaries 
Benefits 
Supplies 

Total City Garage 

Total General Govern~nent 

Public Safety: 
Police Department: 

Salaries 
Benefits 
Repairs and maintenance 
Supplies 
Outside services 
Utilities 
Insurance 
Other costs 
Capital outlay 
Total Public Safety 

Streets and Public Works: 
Salaries 
Employee benefits 
Repairs and maintenance 
Supplies 
Outside services 
Insurance 
Capital outlay 

Total Streets and Public Works 

For tile Year Ended June 30,2012 
Variance with 
Final Budget - 

Budgeted A~nounts Actual Positive 
Original Final Amounts (Negative) 
$226,176 226,580 222,455 4,125 

Continued on next page 



CITY OF MT. JULIET, TENNESSEE 

Statenlent of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Cl~anges in Fund Balance - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 

General Fund. Continued 

For the Year Ended June 30,2012 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

B u d g e t e d  Amounts 
Original Final 

Actual 
Amounts Expenditures 

Recreation and Culture: 
Salaries 
Employee benefits 
Repairs and ~naintenance 
Supplies 
Outside services 
Insurance 
Utilities 
Fanners market 
Appropriations to  onpr profits 
Capital outlay 

Total Recreatiou and Culture 

Total Expenditures 11,236,759 11,348,904 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures 1,360,297 1,354,687 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Transfers out 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures & Other Uses (321,077) (573,325) 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 5,622,349 5,622,349 

Fund Balance, End of Year 

See acco~npa~lying notes to financial statements. 
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CITY OF MT. JULIET, TENNESSEE 

Statement of Net Assets 

Proprietary Fund 

June 30,2012 

Business -type 
Activities 
Sewer Internal 

Enterprise Service 

- Fund Fund 

Current Assets: 
Cash 
Invest~nents 
Receivable-net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $23,401 
Interest receivable 
Prepaid insurance 
Inventory 

Total Current Assets 
Noncurrent Assets: 

Restricted cash - restricted for capital projects 
Capital Assets: 

Land 
Construction in progress 
Collection system 
Buildings 
Equipment 

Total Capital Assets 
Less: accu~nulated depreciation 

Net Property, Plant and Equipment 
Total Noncurrent Assets 
Total Assets 

Liabilities 

Current Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 
Interest payable 
Due to general fund 
Bonds and notes payable - current 

Total Current Liabilities 
Noncurrent Liabilities: 

Other post-employment benefit obligation 
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 
Total Liabilities 

Net Assets 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Restricted for capital i~nproveinents 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Assets 
Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund 

activities related to enterprise funds 
Net Assets of business -type activities 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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CITY OF MT. JULIET, TENNESSEE 

Statement of ~evenues ,  Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets 

Proprietary Fund 

For the Year Ended June 30,2012 

Business -type 
~ c t i v i t k s  
Sewer Internal 

Enterprise Service 
Fund Fund 

Operating Revenues: 
Charges for sales and services - sewer 
Sewer inspection and administrative charges 
Penalties 
Other 

Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses: 
Sewer line and pump maintenance 
Sewer lift station operation 
Administrative and accounting 
Sewer transportation and treatment 
Depreciation 
Professional services 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Income (Loss) 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses): 
Gain on sale of equipment 

- ~ 

Interest expense 
Interest income 

Net Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 

Net Income (Loss) Before Contributions 

Contributions: 
Capital contribution - Tap fees 
Capital contribution - Utility plant 

Total Contributions 

Change in Net Assets 

Net Assets - Beginning of Year 

Net Assets - End of Year 

Change in Net Assets as shown above 

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund 
activities related to enterprise funds 

Change in Net Assets of business -type activities 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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CITY O F  RIT. JULIET, TENNESSEE 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Proprietary Fund 

For the Year Ended June 30,2012 

Casli Flows Provided (Used) By Operating Activities: 
Cash received from customers 
Cash paid for personnel services 
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services 
Cash received paid on interfund advances 
Cash paid for interfund administrative support services 
Premiums received 
Medical claims and administrative expenses paid 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by 
Operating Activities 

Cash Flows Provided (Used) By Capital and Related 
Financing Activities: 

Purcl~ase of property, plant and equipment 
Cash received on sale of equipment 
Interest paid on debt 
Contributions from customers 
Payments on long-term debt 

Net Casli Provided (Used) by Capital 
and Related Financing Activities 

Casli Flows Provided (Used) By Investing Activities: 
Purchase of investments 
Interest received on investments 

Sewer 
Enterprise 

Fund 
$4,014,089 

(894,462) 
(2,657,3 16) 

79 
(82,000) 

Internal 
Service 
Fund 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 1,185,889 214,802 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 3,762,967 5,48 1 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $4,948,856 220,283 

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided by Operations 

Operating income (loss) ($765,583) 334,919 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to 
net cash provided by operating activities 

Depreciation and amortization 
(Increase) Decrease in: 

Accou~lts receivable 
Prepaid expenses 
Inventory 

Increase (Decrease) in: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 
Other post-employment benefit obligation 
Doelfrom to other funds 

Net cash provided by operating activities $380,390 214,802 

Non-cash Inves t in~&pi ta l  and Financing Activities 
During the year the City accepted sewer lines from developers in the amount of $567,545 and also liquidated contracts payable 
related to capital asset acquisitions in the net amount of $24,702 . 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 



CITY OF' MT. JULIET, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended June 30,2012 

1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

General Infomation 

The City of Mt. Juliet, Tennessee, was incolporated in 1972. The City operates under a Commissioner - Manager 
form of govelninent and provides the following sel-vices as authorized by its charter; public safety (police), 
highways and streets, sanitation, public improvements, planning and zoning, and general administrative sewices 
and sanitary sewers. 

The accounts of the City of Mt. Juliet are maintained, and the financial statements have been prepared in 
conformity with recoinmendations of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The following is a 
summary of the significant accounting policies. 

Reporting Entitv 

The accompanying financial statements present the govenlment and its components units, entities for which the 
government is considered to be financially accountable. Component units, although legally separate entities, are 
required to be presented in the government's financial statements using either a "blended" or "discrete" 
presentation. 

As of June 30, 2012, the City had no component units which were required to be included in these financial 
statements. 

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of changes in net 
assets) report infonnation on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the prirnaiy government and its component units. 
For the most part, the effect of the interfilnd activity has been removed fiom these statements. Govern~nental 
activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately fiom 
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for suppol-t. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given filnction or segment 
are offset by prograin revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific fi~nction or 
segment. Program revenues include (i) charges to customers or applicants (including fines and fees) who 
purchase, use, or directly benefit fiom goods, sewices, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 
(ii) grants and contribi~tions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular 
function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included ainong program revenues are reported instead 
as general revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and the proprietary fund. Major individual 
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fi~nd financial 
statements. 

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietaiy fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned 
and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the tiining of related cash flows. Property 
taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as 

' 

revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 



CITY OF MT. JULIET, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30,2012 

1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (Continued) 

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation, (Continued) 
1 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the 
modified accmal basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. 
Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter 
to pay liabilities of the cull-ent period. For this puspose, the government considers property taxes to be available if they 
are collected within 60 days of the end of the cuil-ent fiscal period. Sales taxes and other shared revenues through 
inteimediary collecting governments are considered measurable and available if received within 30 days of year end. 
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incuired, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service 
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments are recorded only 
when payment is due. 

Property taxes, state shared revenues and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be 
susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period using the criteria specified 
in the paragraph above. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is 
received by the government. 

The government reports the following major governmental funds: 

The General Fund is the gove~ment's primaiy operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general 
goveininent, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

The Geizeral Capital Projects Fund is used to account for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities 
and repairs to infrastructure. Resources are provided primarily from transfers froin other governmental funds. 

The Elnergerzcy Col?z~?zzlizity Se~vices CapitalProjects Fzrrzd is used to account for the acquisition and construction of 
major capital facilities primarily related to the City establishing a fire department and other public safety capital 
items. 

The Debt Selvice Fzllzd is used to account for the payment of principal and interest on governmental debt. 
Resources are provided from impact fees restricted for debt service. 

The goveinment reports the following major proprietaiy fund: 

The Sewer Fzlryd accounts for the waste water sei-vices provided to customers of the systellz. 

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types: 
Internal Sel-vice Fund, to account for costs associated with the employees health insurance. 

Private sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are followed 
in both the goveinment-wide and enteiyrise fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict 
with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of 
following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same 
limitation. The government has elected not to follow private-sector guidance. 

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements. 
Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the government's utilities and various other functions of'the 
government whose elimination would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions 
concerned. 



CITY OF MT. JULIET, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30,2012 

1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (Continued] 

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation, (Continued) 

Amounts reported as program revenues include (i) charges to customers or applicants (including fines and fees) for goods, 
services, or privileges provided, (ii) operating grants and contributions, and (iii) capital grants and 
contributions. General revenues include all taxes and internally dedicated resources. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and 
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprieta~y 
fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the various utility funds are charges to customers 
for sales and services. Operating expenses for the enterprise fund include the cost of sales and services, administrative 
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non- 
operating revenues and expenses. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use restricted resources first, 
then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

Joint Venture 

The City has entered into a joint venture with Wilson County to form the Wilson County/Mt. Juliet Development Board to 
promote economic development in the area. The board is composed of six members, three appointed by each entity. The 
City has no equity interest in the joint venture, however, the City is required to contribute one half the funding necessary 
to pay development costs of projects approved by the board. Recovery of costs by the City will be from an allocation of 
the real and personal property taxes collected by the county as a result of projects for which the Board was responsible. 
Required disclosures are included in the following notes. 

Cash and Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts in demand deposits, savings accounts, money market accounts and short-term 
certificates of deposit maturing within three months or less of initial maturity dates. Also due to liquidity, the City 
considers funds deposited in the local goveinment investment pool as a cash equivalent for financial statement and cash 
flow purposes. Restricted cash in the Capital Projects and Sewer Fund is restricted for capital improvements. 

Inventories of Supplies 

Inventory items are considered expenditures/expenses when used (consumption method). Inventories are valued as 
follows: 

Enterprise (Sewer) Fund - Inventoly, principally materials, supplies and replacement parts, is valued at the lower of cost 
(first-in, first-out) or market. 

Prepaid Itenls 

Payments made to vendors for sel-vices that will benefit periods beyond June 30,2012 are recorded as prepaid expenses. 
These consist primarily of prepaid insurance and a prepaid maintenance contract with the railroad. 

Receivables and Payables 

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year 
are referred to as "due tolfrom other funds." The residual balance between governmental activities and business-type 
activities at year end was $74,482. 

All trade receivables and tax receivables, are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles. 

16 



CITY OF MT. JULIET, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30,2012 

1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (Continued) 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., road, bridges, sidewalks and 
similar items), are reposted in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the 
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defmed by the Town as assets with an initial, individual cost 
of $3,000 or more and an estimated usefill life in excess of two years. Infrastructure capital assets are defined by the 
City as assets with an individual cost of $10,000 or more with an estimate usefill life in excess of two years. Such 
assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded 
at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. 

Pursuant to GASB Statement 34, the City is not required to record and depreciate infrastructure assets acquired prior 
to the implementation date July 1, 2003. 

The cost of noimal lnaintenance and repairs that do not add to the value ofthe asset or materially extend assets lives 
are not capitalized. 

Major otttlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred during 
the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value ofthe 
assets constructed. During the year, there was no capitalized interest recorded. 

Capital assets of the City are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated usefill lives: 

Buildings 40 years Sidewalks 30 years 
Improvements other than buildings 30 years Bridges 50 years 
Road system infi-astructure 30 years Sewer lines 45 years 
Machinery, equipment Sewer transmission 

and vehicles 5 - 10 years equipment 10-15 years 

Compensated Absences 

General policy of the City pennits the accumulation, within certain limitations, of unused sick and annual leave with 
~~nlirnited carlyover. No provision exists for payment of accumulated sick leave on termination. 

Long-telm Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fi~nd financial statements, long- 
term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, 
business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. 

Bond and note premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the 
bonds using the straight-line method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or 
discount. Bond issue costs are reported net of amortization in other assets and amortized over the term of the 
related debt. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premi~lms and discounts, as well as bond 
issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. 
Premiums received on debt issuance are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt 
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1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuedl 

Long-term Obligations (Continued) 

issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds 
received, are reported as other cost expenditures. 

Fund Balance 

In accordance with Goveinmental Accounting Standard Board (GASB) Statement 54, fund balance is reported in the 
fund financial statements under the following categories. Nonspendable fund balance represents amounts that are 
required to be maintained intact, such as inventories and prepaid items. Restricted fund balance is that portion of 
fund balance that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by external resource or through enabling 
legislation. Committed fund balance includes amounts constrained to specific purposes as determined by foimal 
action of the City using its highest level of decision-making authority, an ordinance by the City Board. Conversely, to 
rescind or modify a fund balance coinnlitment, action by the Board is also required. Assigned fund balance amounts 
are intended to be used by the City for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be restricted or committed. 
Intent may be stipulated by the Board, or City official designated by the Board. Appropriations of fund balance to 
eliminate projected budgetaiy deficits in the subsequent year's budget are presented as assignments of fund balance. 
Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification of the General Fund. 

It is the City's policy to first use restricted fund balance when an expense is incurred for purposes which both 
restricted and unrestiicted funds are available. The City's policy for the use of unrestricted fund balance ainounts 
required that committed amounts would be reduced first, followed by assigned amounts when expellditures incurred 
for purposes for which amounts in any of those unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used. 

By action of the Board, a rainy day account has been set aside in the General Fund, in the amount of $205,65 1. A 213 
vote of the Board is required to remove funds from the account. Additional amounts may be added to the account at 
the discretion of the Board. The rainy day fund amount is included in the unassigned fund balance. 

Property Taxes 

The City's property tax is levied each October on the assessed value listed as of Januaiy 1 for all real and personal 
property located on the City's legal boundaries. All City taxes on real estate and personal property are declared to be 
a lien on such realty from January 1 of the year of assessment. Assessed values are established by the State of 
Tennessee at the following rates of assessed market value: 

Industr-ial and Conmercial Property 
- Real 40% Public Utility Property 55% 
- Personal 3 0% Farm and Residential Property 25% 

Taxes are levied at a rate of $0.20 and $0.20 per $100 of assessed valuation for years 201 1 and 2012. Payments may 
be made during the period October 1 through February 28. Current tax collections of $1,267,107 for the fiscal year 
ended June 30,20 12 were approximately 93% of the tax levy. By vote of the Board, the property taxes were levied 
for the purpose of capital items for public safety and are accounted for in the Emergency Community Services Fund. 
Taxes become delinquent in March of the year subsequent to the levy date; delinquent taxes are tuined over to the 
County Clerk and Master for collection each April. 

The government-wide financial statements report property taxes receivable of $1,468,050 which is net of an 
allowance for doubtful collections of $5,000. Of this receivable $1,377,000 represents the estimated net realizable 
20 12 property taxes. This amount is included in deferred revenue because they are not available until next year. The 
receivable reported in the governmental funds balance sheet is $1,473,050 with offsetting deferred revenue for 
amounts not available at June 30,2012. The additional taxes receivable of $106,606 are beer and hotellmotel taxes. 
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2) DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

Deposits 
Custodial credit rislc for deposits is the rislc that in the event of a bank failure, the City's deposits may not be returned or 
the City will not be able to recover collateral securities in the possession of an outside party. The City's policy requires 
deposits to be 105 percent secured by collateral, less the amount of Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance 
(FDIC) or deposited in an institution which participates in the State Collateral Pool. Deposited funds may be invested in 
certificates of deposit in institutions with an established record of fiscal health and service. Collateral agreements must 
be approved prior to deposit of funds as provided by law. The City approves and designates a list of authorized 
depository institutions based on evaluation of solicited responses and certifications provided by financial institutions and 
recornnle~~dations of City staff. 

At June 30,2012 there were no amounts exposed to custodial credit risk. 

Restricted cash in the governmental activities primarily relates to amounts collected from developers for road and park 
maintenance and improvements as well as unspent bond proceeds. Restricted cash in the business-type activities relates 
to amounts designated for sewer projects. 

Investments 
At June 30, 2012 the City had the following iilvestments: 

Fair Value1 Weighted Average Average 
Tvue of Investment Carrving Amount Days to Maturity Credit Oualit~ Rating 
Certificates of Deposit $ 1,020,333 210 NIA 
Local Government Investment Pool 388,641 NIA NIA 

Total 1,408,974 
Liquid Investments (Cash Equivalents) 388,641 

$ 1.020,333 

Interest Rate Risk: 
The City does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure 
to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. 

CreditICredit Concentration Risk: 
The City's general investment policy is to apply the prudent-person rule; investments are made as a prudent person 
should be expected to act, with discretion and intelligence, to seek reasonable income, preserve capital and in general 
avoid speculative risks, as well as limited to investments authorized by state law. 

3) CAPITAL ASSETS 
Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2012, was as follows: 

Governrne~ltal activities 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land 
Construction in progress 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Buildings and improvements 
Improvenlents other than buildings 
Machinery and equipment 
Infrastructure 
Total capital assets 

Beginning 
Balance Increases 

Reclasses 
and Ending 

Decreases Balance 
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3) CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 
Beginning 

Reclasses 
and Ellding 

Balance Increases Decreases Balance 
Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Buildings and other improvements $ 1,327,948 109,432 1,437,380 
I~nprovements other than buildings 1,129,276 103,869 1,233,145 
Machinery and equipment 2,870,126 377,704 (85,286) 3,162,544 
Infrasbxc ture 2,582,754 1,074,329 3,657,083 

Total acculnulated depreciation 7,910.104 - 1.665,334 (85,286) 9.490.152 
Govelnnlental activities capital 

assets, net $ 35,508.952 39.186:349 

During the year, the City accepted donated equipment and infiasbucture in the anlount of $3,975,800. 

Reclasses 
Business-type activities: B egiiming and Ending 

Balance Increases Decreases Balance 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land $ 1,047,544 45,000 1,092,544 
Consbuction in process 294,932 (29 1,749) 3,183 

Capital assets being; depreciated: 
Building 480,5 13 12,220 492,733 
Collections System 51,173,693 723,750 291,749 52,189,192 
Equipment 1,201,927 206,596 (78,143) 1,330,380 
Total capital assets $ 54,198,609 987,566 (78.143) 55,108,032 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Collection System and building $ 12,603,272 1,151,636 13,754,908 
Equipment 1,075.880 73,289 (78,143) 1,071,026 
Total accumulated depreciation 13,679,152 1.224.925 (78.143) 14,825,934 

Business-type activities capital 
assets, net $40,519,457 

Depreciation expense was charged to function/programs as of June 30,2012,as follows: 

Governmental activities: 
General government 
Public safety 
Street and public worlcs 
S torrnwater 
Recreational and culture 

Total depreciation expense- 
governmental activities $ 1.665,334 

Business-type activities: 
Water and Sewer 
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4) RECEIVABLES AND DEFERRED REVENUE 

Accounts and taxes receivable at June 30,2012 consisted of the following: 

Emergency 
General Comnlunity 

Fund Service Fund 
Property taxes $ 1,473,050 
Beer taxes 68,652 
Hotel/Motel tax 37,954 
Customer 
Allowance for- 
doubtful accounts (5.000) 

$ 106.606 1.468.050 

Enterprise 
Fund 

1,473,050 
68,652 
37,954 

582,711 5 82,7 1 1 

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered to be 
available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also defer revenue recognition in connection 
with resources that have been received but not earned. At year end the various components of deferred revenue reported 
in the governmental funds are as follows: 

Property Taxes $1,465,599 
State and County shared taxes (unavailable) 886,989 

$ 2.352,588 

Defeired revenue in the government-wide financial statements include amounts for unavailable revenues related to 
state income tax of $48,771 and property tax of $1,377,000. 

5) ' LONG-TERM DEBT AND OTHER OBLIGATIONS PAYABLE 

The government issues general obligation bonds and notes to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of 
major capital facilities for general government purposes. 

The government also issues bonds where the government pledges income derived from the acquired or constructed assets 
to pay debt service. These bonds relate to the Sewer Enterprise Fund. Should sewer revenues be insufficient to pay the 
debt service, the debt is payable &om the taxing authority of the City. For governmental activities, compensated absences 
and other post-employment benefits obligations are generally liquidated by the general fund. The following is a summary 
of changes in long-ten11 liabilities for the year ended June 30,2012: 

Governmental Activities 
Public Improvement Bonds 
Capital Outlay Notes 
Net OPEB obligation 
Compensated absences 
Total Governmental Activities 

Bond discounts/pren~iun~s 
Loss on refunding 

Business-type Activities 
TML Bond Fund 
Net OPEB Obligation 

Balance 
07-01-11 Addition Reductions 

Balance 
06-30-12 

Current 
Portion 
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5 )  LONG-TERM DEBT AND OTHER OBLIGATIONS PAYABLE, Continued 

Long term bonds and notes at June 30,2012 consisted of the following obligations: 

Governmental-type Activities 

$6,820,000 Series 2009 general obligation refunding bonds due 
in annual installments through year 2026 with semi-annual interest 
payments at rates ranging from 3% to 4.2%. 

Balance 
June 30,2012 

$10,000,000 general obligation public improvement bonds 
Series 2010 due in annual installments through year 2034 
with semi-annual interest payments at rates ranging from 3% to 4%. 

$1,100,000 Capital Outlay Notes due in annual installments 
through 2017 at an interest rate of 2.2%. 

Total Governmental-type Activities 

Business-type Activities 

$1,800,000 Series 2001 TML Bond Fund Loans to finance sewer 
i~nprovements. Interest is variable and based on bond fund index 
with no cap. Principal payments are made annually. 

Total Business-type activities 

The annual requirements to amortize all bonds and notes outstanding as of June 30,2012 are as follows: 

Fiscal 
Year 

2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 

2018-2022 
2023-2027 
2028-2032 
2033-2034 

Public 
Irnprovenlent 

Bonds 
$ 465,000 

490,000 
500,000 
520,000 
535,000 

2,955,000 
3,560,000 
4,550,000 
2,120,000 

$ 15,695,000 

Capital 

Interest Bond Interest 
628,899 189,000 8,505 
610,111 
590,569 
569,661 
547,739 

2,408,063 
1,791,988 

996,488 
130,887 - - 

8.274,405 1891000 8,505 
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6) PENSION PLAN 

Plan Description 

Employees of the City of Mt. Juliet are members of the Political Subdivision Pension Plan (PSPP), an agent multiple- 
employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System (TCRS). TCRS 
provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. Benefits are determined by a formula using the 
member's high five-year average sala~y and years of service. Members become eligible to retire at the age of 60 with 5 
years of service, or at any age with 30 years of service. A reduced retirement benefit is available to vested members at 
the age of 55. Disability benefits are available to active members with five years of service who become disabled and 
cannot engage in gainful employment. There is no service requirement for disability that is the result of an accident or 
inju~y occul-ring while the member was in the performance of duty. 

Members joining the system after July 1, 1979 become vested after 5 (five) years of service and members joining prior to 
July 1, 1979 were vested after 4 (four) years of service. Benefit provisions are established in state statute found in Title 
8, Chapter 34-37 of the Tennessee Code Annotated (TCA). State statutes are amended by the Tennessee General 
Assembly. Political subdivisions such as Mt Juliet participate in the TCRS as individual entities and are liable for all 
costs associated with the operation and administration of their plan. Benefit improvements are not applicable to a 
political subdivision unless approved by the chief governing body. 

The TCRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary 
information for the PSPP. That report may be obtained by writing to Tennessee Treasury Department, Consolidated 
Retirement System, 10th Floor Andrew Jackson Building, Nashville, TN 37243-0230 or can be accessed at 
www. tlz.gov/treasury/tcrs/PS/. 

Funding Policy 

Mt. Juliet has adopted a nonconh-ibutory retirement plan for its employees by assuming employee contributions up to 
5.0% of annual payroll. 

Mt. Juliet is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate; the rate for fiscal year ending June 30, 2012 was 
12.39% annual covered payroll. The contribution requirement of plan members is set by state statute. The contribution 
requirement for Mt. Juliet is established and may be amended by the TCRS Board of Trustees. 

Annual Pension Cost 

For the year ending June 30, 2012, Mt. Juliet's annual pension cost of $779,826 TCRS was equal to Mt. Juliet's 
required and actual contributions. 

The required contribution was dete~mined as part of the July 1, 2009 actuarial valuation using the fi-ozen entry age 
actuarial cost method. Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuation include (a) rate ofreturn on investment of 
present and future assets of 7.5% per year compounded annually, (b) projected 3% annual rate of inflation, (c) projected 
salary increases of 4.75% (graded) annual rate (no explicit assumption is made regarding the portion attributable to the 
effects of inflation on salaries), (d) projected 3.5% annual increase in the Social Security wage base, and (e) projected 
post retirement increases of 2.5% annually. 



CITY OF MT. JULIET, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30,2012 

6) PENSION PLAN, Continued 

The actuarial value of assets was determined using techniques that smooth the effect of short-term volatility in the 
market value of total investments over a ten-year period. Mt. Juliet's unhnded actuarial accrued liability is being 
amortized as a level dollar amount on a closed basis. The remaining amo~tization period at July 1,2009 was 9 years. 
An actuarial valuation was performed as of July 1, 201 1, which established contribution rates effective July 1,2012. 

Trend infoimation: 

Fiscal 
Year 

Ending 
6130112 
613011 1 
613011 0 

Annual 
Pension 
Cost (APC] 

$779,826 
$ 742,619 
$ 758,775 

Percentage Net 
of APC Pension 

Contributed Obligation 
100.00% 
100.00% 
100.00% 

As of July 1,201 1, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 81.43% funded. The actuarial accmed liability 
for benefits was $9.3 1 million, and the actuarial value of assets was $7.58 million resulting in an unfunded accrued 
liability (UAAL) of $1.73 million. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was 
$4.9 million, and the ration of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 30.06%. 

The schedules of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information, present multi-year trend 
information about whether the actuarial values of plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time related to the AAL's 
for benefits. 

Required Suvvlementary Information 

Schedule of Funding Progress for the City of Mt. Juliet: 

(Dollar amounts in thousands) 

Actuarial Actuarial 
Valuation Value of 

Date Assets 

Actuarial Unfunded Funded Covered UAAL as a Percentage 
Accrued AAL Ratio Payroll Of Covered Payroll 
Liability (UAAL) 
(-4-w 
(b) @)-(a) (a/b) (c) ((b-aYc) 

T11e Gove~nmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) requires the plan to prepare the Schedule of Funding 
Progress using the entry age actuarial cost method. 
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7) POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE PLAN 

The City administers the City of Mt. Juliet, Tennessee Post Retirement Medical Benefit Plan. For accounting purposes, 
the plan is a single employer defined benefit OPEB plan. Benefits are established and amended by the Mayor and the 
Board of Commissioners. Retired employees with 15 years of service, drawing retirement from the City's retirement 
account under TCRS, are eligible for the Plan until the employee is eligible for Medicare coverage. The Plan does not 
issue a stand-alone report. 

Funding Policy 

The City offers a Medical, Dental, Vision and Life Insurance program to retirees and the family of City retired employees. 
The coverage is available for the life of the retiree and the spouse. No contribution is required for life insurance coverage. 
The other coverage contribution level for retirees is the same as that for current employees based on their coverage and 
lifestyle choices. The plan is "self-funded" and total cost is affected by the annual claims. The insurance plan 
administrator estimates the expected cost between $1,239 and $1,5 13 monthly. Contributions by employees and retirees 
for medical coverage valy between $73 and $137 tnonthly for single coverage and between $377 and $5 12 monthly for 
family coverage. In addition, contributions are required for family vision coverage at $7.82 monthly and family dental 
coverage of $47.68. 

ARC $ 483,557 
Increase due to interest 44,6 15 
Amortization of prior year 

Net OPEB contribution (74.76 1) 
Annual OPEB cost 453,4 1 1 
Amount of contribution* (55,440) 
Increase in OPEB Obligation 397,971 
Net OPEB Obligatioll 71111 1 1,487,166 
Net OPEB Obligation 6/30/12** $1.885.137 

Percentage A~lllual 
OPEB Cost 

Year End Annual OPEB Cost Contributed 
6130112 $ 453,411 12.2% 
613011 1 406,400 13.7% 
613 01 10 706,807 7.8% 

"Based on expected contribution per study. 
**Governnlental Activities - $1,612,853; Business Activities - $272,284 

Required Supplementary Information 

Funded Status and Funding Promess 

Net OPEB 
Obligation 

At Year End 
$ 1,885,137 

1,487,166 
1,136,308 

Actuarial valuation date 613 0109 6/30/10 6/30/11 
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $ 3,632,044 2,s 16,208 3,034,558 
Actuarial value of plan asset 
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability 3,632,044 2,5 16,208 3,034,558 
Actuarial value of assets as a % of AAL 
Covered payroll $ 5,006,921 6,807,263 6,104,742 
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 72.5% 37.0% 49.7% 
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7) POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE PLAN, Continued 

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of 
events far into the future, and actuarially dete~mined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results 
are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the hture. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

Calculations are based on the types of benefits provided under the terms of the substantive plan at the time of each 
valuation and on the pattern on sharing of costs between the employer and plan members to that point. Actuarial 
calculations reflect a long-term perspective. Consistent with that perspective, actuarial methods and assumptions 
used include techniques that are designed to reduce short term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the 
actuarial value of assets. 

In the July, 201 1, actuarial valuation, the Projected Unit Cost Method was used. The actuarial assumptions 
included a 3 percent discount rate of return (net of administrative costs) and an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 
8 percent initially, reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate of 3 percent after five years. The unfunded actuarial 

accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of payroll on a closed basis over a 30 year period 
beginning with July 1,2008. 

8) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Metro Agreement 

The City has an ongoing sewer treatment agreement with the Metro Nashville Government of Davidson County 
which began July 1,2000. This agreement provides that Mt. Juliet is obligated to pay a fee per thousand gallons 
of flow fi-om the Mt. Juliet System to Metro. This rate is to be recalculated on July 1 of each year with increases 
based on the Consumer Price Index. The agreement also provides that Mt. Juliet will not be responsible for any 
capital cost contribution to Metro except through the above flow charge. Additionally, for service connections that 
occur in Mt. Juliet after July 1,2000, a one time capacity charge of $569 for each 350 gallons of flow per day per 
connection shall be collected by Mt. Juliet and remitted to Metro. This is subject to adjustment every five years. 
During the current fiscal year the City paid Metro $1,5 18,804 for sewer treatment and $270,275 for connection 
charges under this agreement. 

Contracts 

All City constn~ction projects were substantially complete at June 30,2012. 

Medical Claims 

The City is contesting a medical claim, related to a former employee . Claims in excess of $400,000 have been 
made, however the City contends that the procedures performed were excluded under the plan and will vigorously 
defend their position. No provision for this contingency has been made in the financial statements. 

Litigation 

There were several other pending lawsuits in which the City is involved. The City attorney estimates that potential 
claims against the City resulting from such litigation would not materially affect the financial statements of the 
City. 
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COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES, Continued 

Leases 

The City has entered into leases for computer and related equipment. The equipment may be purchased at its fair 
market value at the end of the term of the lease. The City made lease payments in the amount of $23,145 during 2012. 
Future lease obligations are as follows: 

Local Government Insurance Cooperative 

The City previously participated in the Local Government Insurance Cooperative (LOGIC), a public entity risk pool that 
operated as a common risk management and workers' compensation insurance program for approximately one hundred 
government entities. LOGIC was self-sustaining through member premiums and also obtained specific excess and 
aggregate excess coverage through a commercial insurance company. The City has learned the commercial insurance 
company is in banlauptcy, and the City may be assessed by LOGIC to help cover claims incurred during the City's 
participation, all known assessments have been accrued. The City does not believe, based on current information, any 
potential future assessment would be material to the City's financial statements. 

Contingencies 

The City received a Department of Housing and Urban Development Home Investment Partnership Grant Note. The 
grant note in the amount of $384,968, is forgivable as long as the City continues to meet the terms of the grant note 
through 2025. 

During the year management became aware of a state law which appears to require the distribution of a percentage of 
state shared revenue to another local government. Legal counsel is reviewing the issue and if required, a negotiated 
settlement is expected. The potential liability could be up to approximately $285,000. The amount of liability, if any, is 
not currently dete~minable and therefore no provision has been made in these financial statements. 

Amounts received fiom Grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustments by Grantor agencies, principally Federal 
and State governments. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected could become a liability to the 
applicable fund. 

9) RISK MANAGEMENT 

The City has chosen to establish the Self Insured Medical Insurance Fund (intei-nal service fund) for rislts associated 
with the enlployees' health insurance plan. The fund is accounted for as an internal service fund where assets are set 
aside for claim settlements. The City retains the risk of loss to a limit of $50,000 per employee, and $1,397,885 
aggregate annual cap. The City has obtained a stop/loss commercial insurance policy to cover claims beyond this 
liability. All full-time employees of the government are eligble to participate. A premium charge is allocated to each 
fund that accounts for full-time employees. This charge is based on actuarial estimates of the amounts needed to pay 
prior and current-year claims and to establish an amount for catastrophic losses. Liabilities of the fund are reported 
when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. The Fund 
establishes claims liabilities based on estimates of the ultimate cost of claims that have been reported but not settled, and 
of claims that have been incurred but not reported. The process used to compute claims liabilities does not necessarily 
result in an exact amount. For the government-wide financial statements the activity and assets and liabilities of the 
fund have been allocated to the participating funds. 



CITY OF MT. JULIET, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30,2012 

9) RISK MANAGEMENT, Continued 

Changes in the balance of claims liabilities during the past two fiscal years are as follows: 

Beginning-of- Cusrent Year Claims Claim Balance of 
Fiscal-Year Liabilitv and Changes in Estimates Payments Fiscal Year-End 

2009-2010 $ 121,618 1,329,461 1,305,916 145,163 
2010-201 1 145,163 1,601,652 1,557,498 189,317 
201 1-2012 189,317 1,380,597 1,500,714 69,200 

The City continues to casry commercial insurance for all other risks of loss, including general liability, property, 
casualty, worlters' compensation and environmental. Settled claims form these risks have not exceeded colnmercial 
insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 

10) JOINT VENTURE 

During the 1995 fiscal year the City entered into an inter-local agreement with Wilson County as authorized by TCA 
Section 5-1-1 13 and 12-9-101. As part of this agreement all assets and liabilities associated with Mt. Juliet 
Development Corporation, a component unit of the City, were transferred to Wilson CountyIMt. Juliet Development 
Board, a joint venture with the County. 

The Board of the joint venture consists of six members, three appointed by each government. During the year the City 
did not appropriate any funds to the venture. Upon dissolution any obligations become the obligation of the County and 
any remaining funds shall be paid equally to the participating parties. At June 30,2012 and 201 1, the Board had an 
accumulated net assets of $362,386 and $303,044 respectively. The net change in net assets for fiscal year 2012 was 
$59,342. Financial information regarding the joint venture is available from the City. 

11) INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS 

Interfund receivables and payables are athibutable to obligations between funds. The actual cash transfer has not been 
made at June 30,2012. The balances were eliminated in the government-wide financial statements. The composition of 
interfund balances is as follows and relates to amounts expended for projects that are to be reimbursed by the General 
Fund. 

Receivable Fund Payable Fund 
Capital Projects Fund $ 1.399 General Fund $ 1,320 

Sewer Enterprise Fund 79 
$ 1.399 

Balances between activities in the government wide financial statements also include $74,482 related to the 
consolidation of the internal service fund. During the year, the General Fund transferred $498,495 to the Capital 
Project Fund and $550,000 to the Debt Service Fund and $683,674 to an Emergency Communication Service Fund. 
These are attributable to budgeted allocations of resources from one fund to another. 

12) BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING 

The City is required by state statute to adopt an annual budget. The General and Special Revenue Funds budgets are 
prepared on the basis that current available funds must be sufficient to meet current expenditures. Expenditures may 
not legally exceed appropriations authorized by the Board. The City's budgeta~y basis is consistent with generally 
accepted accounting principles. Budget appropriations lapse at year end. The enterprise fund is not required to adopt 
an operating budget. 



CITY OF MT. JULIET, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30,2012 

12) BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING 

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements: 

1. Prior to June 30, the City Manager submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the 
fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and 
the means of financing them. 

2. Public hearings are conducted at City Hall to obtain taxpayer comments. 

3. The budget is legally enacted through passage of ordinance. 

4. The budget is adopted on a departmental basis. Any revision that alters the total expenditures of any 
department or fund must be approved by the City Council. 

5.  Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for the 
General Fund and Special Revenue Funds. 

6. Budgets for the General and Special Revenue Funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) at the department level. Budget appropriations lapse at year 
end. 

7. Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted, or as amended by the City Council. 

During the year, the General Fund appropriations budget was increased by $1 12,145. The Special Revenue Fund 
appropriations were amended by $73,458, the Capital Projects Funds budgets were amended by $1,461,054 primarily 
for communication equipment. The Debt Service Fund was amended by a decrease of $33,450. 

13) SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Subsequent to year end the City entered into a contract for the construction of a fire hall for approximately $1.2 million. 
The construction will be hnded by finds in the Emergency Se~vices Capital Projects Fund. 
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CITY OF MT. JULIET, TENNESSEE 

Combining Balance Sheet 

Taxes receivable 

Assets 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

June 30,2012 

Special Revenue Funds 
State 
Street Drug Stormwater 

Aid Fund Fund Fund 

Cash and cash equivalents $1,765,043 190,459 186,854 
Prepaids 2,000 
Due from other governments 11 1,019 

Total Assets $1,876,062 190,459 188,854 

Liabilities and Fund Balallces 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable $24,388 19,156 3,127 
Accrued liabilities 25,882 
Deferred revenue 57,993 

Total Liabilities 82,381 19,156 29,009 

Fund Balances: 
Nonspendable - prepaids 
Restricted 

Total Fund Balance 

Total Liabilities & Fund Bala~lces $1,876,062 190,459 188,854 

Total 
Nonmajor 

Governmental 
Funds 



CITY OF MT. JULIET, TENNESSEE 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures & Changes in Fund Balance 

Nonmajor Govel*nmental Funds 

For the Year Ended June 30,2012 

Special Revenue Funds 
State 
Street Drug Stormwater 

Aid Fund Fund Fund 

Total 
Nonluajor 

Govenunental 
Funds 

Revenues 
Intergovenlmental: 

State gasoline tax 

Interest 
Licences and permits and fees 
Drug related fines, seizures, and sales 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 
Street Maintenance: 

Current: 
Other Costs - maintenance and lighting 

Capital outlay 
Stormwater: 

Current: 
Salaries 
E~nployee benefits 
Other 

Capital outlay 
Police: 

Current: 
Supplies and investigations 

Capital outlay 

Total Expenditures 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures (170,165) 24,921 (75,834) 

Other Financing sources (Uses) 
Transfers 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues & Other Sources 
Over Expenditures & Other Uses (170,165) 24,921 (75,834) 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 1,963,846 146,382 - 235,679 

Fund Balance, End of Year $1,793,68 1 171,303 159,845 



CITY OF MT. JULIET, TENNESSEE 

Revenues 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes 
in Fund Balance - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 

State Street Aid Fund 

For the Year Ended June 30,2012 

Intergovernlnental: 
Gasoline tax, State of Tennessee 

Interest 
Total Revenues 

Expenditures 
Street Maintenance 

Repairs and maintenance 
Street lighting 
Capital outlay 

Total Expenditures 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Budgeted Ainounts Actual Positive 
Original Final Amounts (Negative) 

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures (2 10,968) (213,942) (1 70,165) 43,777 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Transfers 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues & Other Sources 
Over Expenditures & Other Uses (210,968) (2 13,942) - (1 70,165) 43,777 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 1,963,846 1,963,846 1,963,846 

Fund Balance, End of Year $1,752,878 1,749,904 1,793,68 1 43,777 

* 1989 tax $67,387 
Three cent tax 125,072 
Gas & motor fuel tax 418,344 

$610,803 



CITY OF MT. JULIET, TENNESSEE 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 
Fund Balance - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 

Drug Fund 

For the Year Ended June 30,2012 

Budgeted Anlounts Actual 
Revenues Original Final Amounts 
Other: 

Interest $500 500 1,661 
Drug related fines, seizures and sales 40,000 65,000 106,443 

Total Revenues 40,500 65,500 108,104 

Expenditures - 
Program costs 
Capital outlay 

Total Expenditures 

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures 4,600 (40,400) 24,92 1 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Transfers 36,000 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues & Other Sources 
Over Expenditures & Other Uses 40,600 (40,400) 24,92 1 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 146,382 146,382 - 146,382 

Fund Balance, End of Year 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 



CITY OF MT. JULIET, TENNESSEE 

Revenues 
Interest 
Licenses and permits: 

Inspection and other fees 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 
Street Maintenance 

Salaries 
Einployee benefts 
Other 
Capital outlay 

Total Expenditures 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes 
in Fund Balance - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 

Stormwater Fund 

For the Year Ended June 30,2012 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 

Fund Balance, End of Year 

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive 
Original -- Final Amounts . (Negative) 

$2,000 2,000 2,016 16 



FINANCIAL SCHEDULES 



CITY OF RIT. JULIET, TENNESSEE 

Revenues 
Intergovernmental: 

Grants 
Other: 

Interest 
Total Revenues 

Expenditures 
General Government 
Courts 

Capital outlay 
City Hall Buildings & IT Services 

Repairs and maintenance 
Capital outlay 

Garage 
Capital outlay 

Total General Government 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes 
in Fund Balance -.Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 

General Capital Projects Fund 

For the Year Ended June 30,2012 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive 
Original Final Amounts (Negative) 

Public Safety 
Police 

Supplies 
Capital outlay 

Total Public Safety 

Streets and Pub!ic Works 
Repairs and maintenance 
Capital outlay 

Total Streets and Public Works 

Recreation and Culture 
Capital outlay 

Total Recreation and Culture 

Total Expenditures 

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Capital note proceeds 
Operating transfer in 

Total other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues & Other Sources 
Over Expenditures & Other Uses 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 

Fund Balance, End of Year 



CITY OF MT. JULIET, TENNESSEE 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes 
in Fund Balance - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 

Emergency and Community Services Fund Capital Projects 

For the Year Ended June 30,2012 

Budgeted Amounts Actual 
Revenues Original Final Amounts 

Local taxes: 
Property tax 

Interest 
Total Revenues 

Fire 
Other costs 
Capital outlay 

Total Expenditures 

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures 1,230,500 (710,139) 960,419 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Transfer froin General Fund 683,674 683,674 683,674 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues & Other Sources 
Over Expenditures & Other Uses 1,914,174 (26,465) 1,644,093 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 69 1,973 69 1,973 691,973 

Fund Balance, End of Year 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 



CITY OF MT. JULIET, TENNESSEE 

Revenues 
Other: 

Interest 
Impact fees 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 
Debt Service 

Principal 
Interest 

Total Expenditures 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 
Fund Balance - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 

Debt Service Fund 

For the Year Ended June 30,2012 

Budgeted Amounts Actual 
Original Final Amounts 

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures (705,801) (672,35 1) (597,253) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Operating transfer in 683,450 650,000 550,000 

Total other Financing Sources (Uses) 683,450 650,000 550,000 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues & Other Sources 
Over Expenditures & Other Uses (22,35 1) (22,35 1) (47,253) 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 186,015 186,015 186,015 

Fund Balance, End of Year $163,664 163,664 138,762 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 



CITY OF MT. JULIET, TENNESSEE 

Function and Activity 

Capital Assets Used id the Operation of Governmental Funds 

Schedule of Changes in Capital Assets By Function and Activity 

For the Year Ended June 30,2012 

General Government 

Public safety: 
Police 
Fire 

Balance Transfers & Balance 
June 30,20 1 1 Additions Deletions June 30,20 12 

Streets and Public Works 33,041,955 4,142,323 (62,243) 37,122,035 

Stormwater 50,537 - 50,537 

Parks 5,455,006 277,087 5,732,093 

Total governmental funds capital assets $43,419,056 5,342,73 1 (85,286) 48,676,501 



Function and Activity: 

General Govemtnent 

Public safety: 
Police 
Fire 

Streets and Public Works 

Stonnwater 

Parks 

Total govemtnental funds capital assets 

CITY OF MT. JULIET, TENNESSEE 

Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds 

Schedule By Function and Activity 

June 30,2012 

Building & Machinery 
Land Improvements & Equipment Infastructure 

Construction 
In Progress Total 



CITY OF MT. JULIET, TENNESSEE 

Schedule of Cash and Cash Equivalents 

All Funds 

June 30,2012 

m j o r  Governmental Funds 
Interest 
Rates 

General Fund: 
Passbook and checking accounts 
Petty Cash 

Total General Fund 

General Capital Projects Fund: 
Passbook and checking accounts 

Total Capital Projects Fund 

Debt Service Fund 
Passbook and checking accounts 

Emergency and Commullity Services Capital Projects Fund 
Passbook and checlting accounts 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

State Street Aid Fund: 
Local Government Investment Pool 
Passbook and checking accounts 

Total State Street Aid Fund 

Drug Fund: 
Cash on hand 
Passbook and checking accounts 

Total Drug Fund 

Storm Water: 
Cl~eclting accounts 

Proprietary Funds 

Sewer Enterprise Fund 
Petty Cash 
Passbook and checking accounts 

Total Sewer Enterprise Fund 

Internal Service Fund 
Passbook and checking accounts 

Various 

Amount 

Total 



ClTY OF NIT. JULIET, TENNESSEE 

Schedule of Changes in Pleoperty  Taxes Receivable, Tax Rates, Assessments and Levies 

F o r  the Year Ended June 30,2012 

Taxes Collections Taxes 
Tax Tax Receivable and Receivable 
Year Rate Assessment June 30.201 1 h)! edjust~nents June 30: 2012 

*" 2012 Levy 
Property taxes receivable per the Gover~imental Funds Financial Statements 
Allowance for uilcollectibles 
Property taxes receivable per the Government Wide Financial Statement s 

* Turned over to County Clerk for collection. 
Prior to tax year 201 1 the City has not had a propeity tax since 1999. 

**  Current year anticipated levy 



CITY OF MT. JULIET, TENNESSEE 

Fiscal 
Year 

Total 

Schedule of Long-Term Debt Requirements 

Governmental-type Activities 

June 30,2012 

Public Improvement Capital Outlay 
Public Iinprovement Bonds Refunding Bonds Notes 

Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Total 



Fiscal 
EzLS 

Total 

CITY OF MT. JULIET, TENNESSEE 

Schedule of Long-Term Debt Requirements 

Sewer Fund 

June 30,2012 

TML Bond Fund Loan 
Principal Interest Total 



CFDA 
Number 

CITY O F  MT. JULIET, TENNESSEE 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

June 30,2012 

Federal Grants As Identified in the Catalog 
of Federal Domestic Assistance: 

Prosram Name 

Bullit Proof Vest Grant 

HOME Program 

Traffic Law Enforcement Grant 

Grantor Agency 

US Department of Justice 

US Department of Housing 

US Department of Transportation 

Expenditures 

$2,576 

20,014 



CITY OF MT. JULIET, TENNESSEE 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards 

For the Yenr Ended June 30,2012 

Federal Grants As Identified in the 
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance: 

CFDA Grant 
Number Number Program Name 

16.607 NIA Bullit Proof Vest Grant 

20.607 Z l  lGHS026 Impaired Driving and Tetection Program 

14.239 HM-08-35 HOME Program 

20.205 95Lplm-fo-006 * Highway Infrastructure Investmmt Grant 

20.6 154AL-11-26 Traftic Law Enforcement Grant 

State Grants 

Public Assistance Program 

Farmers Market Grant 

Local Parks and Recreation Fund Grant 

TAEP Tree Planting Grant 

Accrued Acclued 
or Deferred or Deferred 

Revenue Cash Revenue 
Grantor Agency 710111 1 Receipts Adjustments Expenditures 6130112 

U. S. Department of Justice $ - 2,576 (2,576) 

TN Department of Transportation (2,790) 2,790 

US Department of Housing and Urban Dev. (1,891) 21,905 20,014 

US Department of Transportation (1,651) 1,651 

TN Department of Transportation 10,370- 10,370 

Tennessee Emergency Management Agency ($3,178) 3,178 

Tennessee Department of Agriculture 10.000 10,000 

Tennesse Department of Environment and Conservation - 25,000 (25,000) 

Tennessee Department of Agriculture (1,884) 1,884 1,162 (1,162) 
--- 

($5,0621 15.062 A 36 , 162 ( 26 162 

Credit balances represent inter-governmental receivables from State and Federal Governments. 
* ARRAFunds 



Insurance Coverage 

Tennessee Municipal League Insurance Pool 

Public Officials Error & O~n~nissions 

CITY O F  MT. JULIET, TENNESSEE 

Schedule of Liability and Property Insurance in Force 

General Liability Automobile Liability, 
Bodily Illjury, Law Enforce~neiit 

Auto~noblle Physical Damage 

Uni~isured Motorist 

Auto~iiobile Medical Paynients 

Property, Multi-Peril 
Real and Personal Property (Total Insured) 
Mobile Equipment 
Accounts Receivable 
Valuable Papers 
Fine Arts 
EDP EquipmentIMedia 

Flood 
Earthquake 

Crime Limits 
Forgery 
Theft, Disappearance a~id Destruction 
Employee Dishonesty 
Public Officials 

Tennessee Risk Management Trust Insura~ice Pool 
(Workme~i's Compensation) 

Details of Coverage 

$3,000,0001 $2,500 deductible 

$300,000 per person bodily injury 
as limited by tort libility act 

$700,000 per occurence bodily injury 
as limited by tort libility act 

$100,000 per occurence law enforcement 
as limited by tort libility act 

$3,000,000 per occurence for each other 

Actual cash value of vehicle or cost to 
replace 

Deductible: 
Comprehensive $1,000 
Collosion $1,000 

$300,000 per person bodily injury 
$100,000 per occurence law enforcement 

$1,000 per person/$10,000 per accident 

$1,000,000 Each accident limit 
$1,000,000 Policy limit by disease 
$1,000,000 Employee lintit by disease 



CITY OF MT. JULIET, TENNESSEE 

Schedule of City Officials 

June 30,2012 

Position 

Elected Officials: 

Mayor Ed Hagei-ty 

Vice Mayor Jaines Marless 

Cominissioner A1-t Giles 

Cominisioner Winston Floyd 

Commissioner Jaines Bradshaw 

Employees: 

City Manager, Randy Robertson 

Interim City Managel; Kenneth Martin 

Finance Director, John T. Rossinaier 

City Recorder, Sheila S. Luckett 

Public Works Director, Marlin Iceel 

Police Chief, Andy Garrett 

Economic Development, Kenneth Mai-tin 

Parks Director, Jay Caineli 

Human Resources Director, Jill Johnson 

The City maintains a$250,000 Public Officials conduct insurance policy. 

Annual Salary 

Through 1/02/12 

1/03/12-6/30/12 



Sewer Rates (Based on water consun~ption) 
Minilnum bill (first 2,000 gallons) 
Each additional 1,000 gallons 

CITY OF MT. JULIET, TENNESSEE 

Schedule of Sewer System Data 

For the Year Ended June 30,2012 

Tap fees 
Residential (inside city) 
Comlnercial (Based on meter size) 
Residential (outside city) 

Installation and pump charges 

Developnlent fees 
Residential (Based 011 zoning) 

Inspectioll fee 

Number of customers 

Outside Inside Ouside 
City City City 

Commercial Commercial Residential Residential 



OTHER =PORTS 



YEARY, HOWELL & ASSOCIATES 
Ceitiified Tublic Accountants 

501 EAST IRIS DRIVE 

NASHVILLE, TN 37204-31 09 

HUBERT E. (BUDDY) YEARY 

GREGORY V. HOWELL 
(61 5) 385-1 008 

FAX (61 5) 385-1 208 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Honorable Mayor and Board of Conlmissioners 
City of Mt Juliet, Tennessee 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the gove~mental activities, business-type activities, each major fund and 
the aggregate remaining fund infolmation of the City of Mt. Juliet as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively 
comprise the City of Mt. Juliet's basic financial statements and have issued a report thereon dated November 14,2012 applicable to 
financial audits contained in Goverlznzelzt Azrditing Stnndai-ds, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 

Intelnal Control Over Financial Reporting 

Management of City of Mt. Juliet is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective intellla1 control over financial reporting. 
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Mt. Juliet's internal control over financial reporting as a basis for 
designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements butnot for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Mt. Juliet's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Mt. Juliet's internal control over financial reporting. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or enlployees, in the 
normal course of perforning their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A mater~al 
weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and coi-rected on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the f i s t  paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, 
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that 
we consider to be material weakness, as defined above. 

Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Mt. Juliet's financial statements are free of material misstatenlent, we 
perfornled tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, nonconlpliance with which 
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of the financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance wit11 those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of 
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Gover~melzt Auditing Standards. 

We noted certain matters that were reported to management in a separate letter dated November 14, 2012. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, Board of Commissioners and, State Comptroller's Office, 
federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. 

November 14,2012 
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